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22 June 2023 
 

 
Dear 
 
RE: FOI 23/361 
 
Thank you for your email dated 16th May 2023, where you asked for a list of medicines which had 
been withdrawn from the UK market due to safety reasons from 2013 to date, as provided previously 
in FOI 13/186. Firstly, please accept our apologies for the delay with this response. 
 
Please note the list provided previously in FOI 13/186 was produced to aid our Yellow Card strategy 
work at that time. We can confirm that the Agency does not hold a comprehensive list of withdrawals 
from the UK market, and to fulfil the request would have to run a search for cancellations in each 
year, which would then require manual review to determine the reason for withdrawal. We have 
estimated the time to fulfil this request below, which exceeds the appropriate time limit in the Freedom 
of Information Act. Therefore, we are exempting your request under Section 12 of the Act. 
 
Section 12 of the Act makes provision for public authorities to refuse requests for information where 
the cost of dealing with them would exceed the appropriate limit, which for central government is set 
at £600. This represents the estimated cost of one person spending 24 working hours in locating, 
retrieving and extracting the information. We estimate that it will take us in excess of 24 working hours 
to determine appropriate material and locate, retrieve and extract the information in reference to your 
request. Therefore, your request will not be processed further.  
 
We have estimated the effort to fulfil your request as follows: 
 
We would need to run a search for all cancelled licences in each year of your request (approx 10 
mins) x 11 = 1.5 hours 
 
We estimate there will be several hundred cancellations in each year (some will be commercial 
decisions, change of licence ownership etc, however, we will have no way of finding this out without 
checking each individual case). Estimate of 5 hours per year x 11 = 55 hours 
 
Following this we will then need to cross-reference committee papers, meeting minutes from the time 
and/or the Drug Safety Update from our website. It is difficult to estimate how much additional time 
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this would take, if there is no information on the website then we would estimate approximately 1 hour 
per substance to review committee papers from the time. 
 
You may wish to refine your request by narrowing its scope: for example, by reducing the range of 
years you would like us to check. However, we cannot guarantee that this refinement will bring the 
request within the fees limit as, depending on the volume of material still falling within scope of the 
refinement, it might still exceed the limit based on our estimates above. In addition to this you should 
be aware that refining your request does not necessarily mean there will be anything held within the 
scope of the refinement (for example there may not have been any medicines withdrawn due to safety 
concerns in the refined period). 
 
If you are dissatisfied with the handling of your request, you have the right to ask for an internal 
review. Internal review requests should be submitted within two months of the date of this response; 
and can be addressed to this email address. 
 
Yours sincerely,  
 
 
FOI Team, 
Vigilance and Risk Management of Medicines Division 
 
 
The MHRA information supplied in response to your request is subject to Crown copyright. The FOIA only entitles you to 
access to MHRA information.  
 
For information on the reproduction or re-use of MHRA information, please visit 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/reproduce-or-re-use-mhra-information/reproduce-or-re-use-mhra-information 
 
If you have a query about this email, please contact us. If you are unhappy with our decision, you may ask for it to be 
reviewed. That review will be undertaken by a senior member of the Agency who has not previously been involved in your 
request. If you wish to pursue that option please write to the Communications Directorate, 4-T, Medicines and Healthcare 
products Regulatory Agency, (via this email address). After that, if you remain dissatisfied, you may ask the Information 
Commissioner at: 
 
The Information Commissioner’s Office  
Wycliffe House  
Water Lane  
Wilmslow  
Cheshire  
SK9 5AF  
 
Copyright notice  
The information supplied in response to your request is the copyright of MHRA and/or a third party or parties, and has been 
supplied for your personal use only. You may not sell, resell or otherwise use any information provided without prior 
agreement from the copyright holder. 
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